
 

 

 

 

 
1 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

THURSDAY, 20 MARCH 2014 AT 9.30 AM 
 

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL 
 
Telephone enquiries to Jane Di Dino 023 9283 4060 or Lisa Gallacher 023 9283 4056 
Email: jane.didino@portsmouthcc.gov.uk   lisa.gallacher@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 

 

Membership 
 
Councillor Peter Eddis (Chair) 
Councillor David Horne (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Margaret Adair 
Councillor Margaret Foster 
Councillor Jacqui Hancock 
Councillor Mike Park 
 

Councillor Gwen Blackett (Havant Borough Council) 
Councillor Dorothy Denston (East Hampshire District 
Council) 
Councillor Peter Edgar (Gosport Borough Council) 
Councillor Keith Evans (Fareham Borough Council) 
Councillor David Keast (Hampshire County Council) 
Councillor Mike Read (Winchester City Council) 
 

 
Standing Deputies 
 
Councillor Michael Andrewes 
Councillor Lee Mason 
Councillor Jim Patey 
 

Councillor Caroline Scott 
Councillor Phil Smith 
Councillor Neill Young 
 

 

(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.) 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 1  Welcome and Apologies for Absence  
 

 2  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 3  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 8) 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

 

 4  Proposal to Close the Lowry Unit (Pages 9 - 14) 

  Jackie Charlesworth, Senior Programme Manager, Integrated Commissioning 
Unit will present the attached report and answer questions on this.   
 

 5  Options for the provision of Vascular Surgery for Southern Hampshire 
(Pages 15 - 50)  

  Simon Jupp, Director of Commissioning, NHS England (Wessex) will answer 
questions on this report. 
 
Representatives from the following organisations have been invited to provide 
evidence to the panel:  
 
Peter Mellor, Director Corporate Affairs and Graham Sutton, Consultant 
Surgeon, Portsmouth Hospitals' NHS Trust  
 
University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust 
 
Wessex Clinical Senate  
 
Dr Jim Hogan, Portsmouth CCG 
 
Janet Maxwell, Director of Public Health 
 
Hany Hafez, Consultant Vascular Surgeon Director, Sussex AAA Screening 
Programme Western Sussex Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 
 



 
 

 
1 

 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING of the Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel held 
on Thursday, 20 February 2014 at 9.30 am in The Executive Meeting Room - 
Third Floor, The Guildhall 
 

Present 
Portsmouth members 

 Councillors Peter Eddis (Chair) 
 David Horne 

Margaret Adair 
Margaret Foster 
Jacqui Hancock 
Mike Park 
 

Co-opted members 
Councillors Gwen Blackett, Havant Borough Council 

Mike Read, Winchester City Council 
  

Also in Attendance 
 

Portsmouth City Council 
Stephen Corrigan, Senior Project Manager, Integrated Commissioning Unit  

Justin Wallace-Cook, Assistant Head of Adult Social Care 
 

Portsmouth Hospitals Trust 
Peter Mellor, Director Corporate Affairs 

 
NHS Property Services  

Clive Shore 
 

Solent NHS Trust 
Ros Tolcher, Chief Executive 

   
 

10 Welcome and Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 
 
Councillors Dorothy Denston, Peter Edgar, Keith Evans and David Keast sent 
their apologies.   
 

11 Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
Councillor Read declared a personal, non-pecuniary interest in respect of 
agenda item 5, in that he formerly worked at St James Hospital.   
 

12 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (AI 3) 
 
Councillor Blackett advised that she had spoken to most of the schools in her 
area to see how many were asking for blanket consent at school entry for 
permission to examine children's teeth.  She reported that the schools she 
visited were not carrying out dental checks in the first year of school but she 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

had two more schools to visit.  Moorlands School in Purbrook have a dentist 
who visits their school. Pupils also receive free samples of toothpaste and 
toothbrushes to encourage a good dental routine.  The panel asked whether 
pupils in Portsmouth schools were given free toothpaste and toothbrushes 
and if not whether it would be possible for pupils in Portsmouth to receive this.   
The panel felt it was important that Portsmouth City Council and Hampshire 
County Council adopt the same practice and have both measures in place.   
 
ACTIONS 

 Check with Dr Jeyanthi John whether schools in Portsmouth offer 
toothbrushes and toothpaste to pupils, and if not ask the Director of 
Public Health whether this initiative could be introduced.   

 Write to the Director of Public Health for Hampshire County Council to 
ask them to consider the blanket consent at school entry for permission 
to examine children's teeth.   

 Examine this further when the Panel reviews dentistry at their June 
meeting.   

 
It was reported that there was an error on page 1 of the minutes on the list of 
attendees.  Darryl Meeking is a Consultant for Portsmouth Hospitals NHS 
Trust and not Solent NHS Trust as the minutes stated.   
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above amendment, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 16 January 2014 be confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair.    
 

13 Portsmouth Hospitals' NHS Trust's Update. (AI 4) 
 
A deputation was made by Sue Mullan of 38 degrees Portsmouth NHS 
Monitoring Group.  She gave the Panel a brief overview of the work of the 
organisation and said that they recognised the challenges faced by health 
professionals.  She was concerned that efficiency savings meant cuts to 
services rather than more efficient services for patients.  She also mentioned 
that patients were often confused of the services available and where they 
should go, so visit Queen Alexandra Hospital creating additional pressures.  
She referred to the pharmacy update at the last meeting by Sarah Billington 
who said she was willing to promote the use of the pharmacy, and said it was 
important to follow this up.  She asked the HOSP how they were planning on 
monitoring this situation.   
 
Councillor Horne said that if there are substantial changes proposed to 
services then it is in the panel's remit to scrutinise these which they would do.  
The panel discussed how the out of hours care service had gradually declined 
and commented that if pharmacies had extended opening hours, this would 
ease some of the pressure on hospitals.  Councillor Eddis thanked Sue 
Mullan for her deputation.  He said that the panel were carrying out a review 
into unscheduled care at their next meeting and they were planning on 
following up on the issues raised in the deputation.  The panel discussed the 
limited pharmacy opening hours which was one reason for patients choosing 
to go to Queen Alexandra Hospital as they had nowhere else to go.  The 
panel agreed they would look into this at their review into unscheduled care.  

Page 2



 
3 

 

Councillor Park said that in his experience efficiency savings did not have to 
mean cuts.  It was the role of the panel to scrutinise rather than campaign.   
 
Peter Mellor, Director Corporate Affairs presented his report that had been 
circulated with the agenda and in response to questions from the panel 
clarified the following points:  
 
Emergency Department Performance  

 There were many factors why the hospital had not met their emergency 
department targets.  The number of patients had not increased but the 
winter months had led to a number of respiratory issues with the 
elderly.   

 The front of door GP had eased some of the pressure however the 
constant pressure of patients visiting the hospital was an issue.  
Regular meetings were held between the GP's and the hospital and on 
the whole the GP font of door initiative was working very well.  The 
hospital had a number of extra beds that often had to be used however 
these needed additional staff.  PHT were meeting with their healthcare 
partners next week to discuss these issues and seek solutions.   

 The front of door service is still a pilot scheme.  PHT were due to meet 
with CCG colleagues to see if this had been a success and had been 
value for money.  Mr Mellor said the key is that the contract needs to 
be set at the right level and agreed with commissioners.   
 
Friends and Family Test 

 The Friends and Family test was introduced by the Department of 
Health in April 2013 as an initiative to improve quality.  Currently it only 
covered in-patients and staff were asked to encourage patients to 
complete the questionnaire and say whether they would be likely to 
recommend Queen Alexandra Hospital to friends and family based on 
their experience.  The questionnaires are anonymous and staff were 
only aware of the ward that the patient had visited.  Staff were 
forbidden from leading patients and were not allowed to help them 
complete questionnaires.   

 The hospital had introduced two methods for completion.  An 
electronic, system using the television screen over the patient beds 
during their hospital stay, or a paper questionnaire which was given 
once they are discharged.  The results of the electronic survey were 
consistently lower and it was thought this was because patients are 
able to fill these in during their stay when they may not be feeling their 
best and have not had time to reflect on their experience. In addition to 
this any 'likely to recommend' answers were discounted from the 
results and only the very likely results are recorded.  PHT had now 
withdrawn the electronic questionnaire and the friends and family score 
had since increased to 72%.  It was for the national debate to decide 
on the format of the questionnaire and whether this should be changed.  
All hospitals in the UK use this test and others had performed better so 
it was not an excuse.   

 The friends and family score for maternity was superb and also for the 
emergency department which was very encouraging.   

Page 3



 
4 

 

 The percentage return of questionnaires was 30% which was not very 
high.  It was felt that patients often are keen to go home once they are 
discharged and do not want to stay longer filling in a questionnaire 
about their hospital experience. The hospital received a large number 
of letters of thanks however, and the panel commented that in general 
they had received positive comments about the hospital from their 
constituents, family and friends.   

 The questionnaires were uniform across the UK and the hospital did 
not have the option to amend the questions.   

 Queen Alexandra Hospital had a bank of nurses to use in the case of 
staff absence.   

 Mr Mellor referred to the point raised in the deputation about finding a 
balance between providing a quality of care and pressures to make 
efficiency savings.  He said that Portsmouth Hospitals Trust was not 
prepared to compromise patients' safety for the sake of budget 
savings.   
 
Patient Discharges  

 There was an issue with doctors discharging patients but not writing 
patients' prescriptions until the end of their rounds.  Doctors were 
encouraged to complete a patient's prescription once they had 
reviewed and discharged a patient.  There was also the discharge 
lounge where patients can wait for their prescription and this enabled a 
bed to be made available for another patient.  Consultants could write a 
prescription that could be taken to an outside pharmacy but this would 
cost the hospital more money.  Medicines dispensed at the hospital 
would cost far less to the hospital than if the patient got these at 
another pharmacy.  It was noted that this was an issue and a balance 
needed to be found. The hospital needed to make the processes more 
efficient and were encouraging clinicians to think about how they can 
improve the process.   

 In response to a comment that the former Royal Haslar Hospital used 
to complete patients prescriptions the evening before they were 
discharged, Mr Mellor said that the clinicians did not want to discharge 
patients too soon and cause further issues.  A patient's condition might 
change overnight causing a need for a different prescription.  The 
emergency department will challenge clinicians to say if a patient fit to 
go home tomorrow whether they could be released the previous 
evening instead.    

 Prioritisation of patient discharge did take place.  Each ward has a 
whiteboard listing every patient and their predicted discharge date, and 
each patient is reviewed every day with a consultant.    
 
Cancer services  

 Mr Mellor said that the number of referrals had risen by 23% in the last 
year, partly because of people living longer and partly due to national 
initiatives encouraging people with symptoms to visit a doctor.  He 
reminded the panel of the recent campaign and said that this had 
caused massive spikes in the number of referrals and it was not easy 
to get extra staff to deal with these.   

Page 4



 
5 

 

 The hospital did not receive warnings before national campaigns were 
about to be publicised.  If they were aware it would help to a degree 
however it will still cause resource implications.   

 Portsmouth Hospitals Trust (PHT) respected the clear targets set by 
the Department for Health despite some being difficult to meet.  The 
hospital now offered robotic surgery for some types of cancer which 
was very successful.  Patients had asked to wait to receive this surgery 
which meant that the hospital was breaching their targets.  Some 
patients had asked not to have cancer treatment over the Christmas 
period which had also been a contributory factor to the hospital not 
meeting its targets.  The hospital had also been a urology consultant 
short until July which had a significant effect on productivity.  

 Councillor Eddis gave a brief report of the 111 centre visit that the 
panel had attended the previous day which was extremely informative.  
There were some areas where the services shut down at night and he 
asked Mr Mellor if the service was helping relieve pressure at Queen 
Alexandra Hospital.  Mr Mellor said that the service was working 
extremely well after a few teething problems.   

 The Referral to Treatment (RTT) times for all patients is 18 weeks and 
the hospital had struggled in certain areas including urology.  Those 
patients who have been waiting the longest are seen first and also 
patients who have a severe case.  A balance was needed between the 
work force and resource availability and this was currently mismatched 
on some areas.   
 

RESOLVED that the Portsmouth Hospitals Trust update be noted and 
the panel will continue to monitor the areas mentioned in the update 
today.   
 

14 St Mary's and St James Hospital Service Review (AI 5) 
 
Clive Shore, Project Director and Ros Tolcher, Chief Executive Solent NHS 
Trust presented their report that had been circulated with the agenda and in 
response to questions from the panel clarified the following points:  

 There were a number of reasons why this initiative had not been 
previously considered.  The original plans were for more PHT services 
to stay on the St Mary's site however due to the NHS reforms and the 
creation of Solent NHS Trust plans had changed but it was now the 
right time to look at this again.  

 The plans will offer patients a better quality of service and also allow for 
savings to be made which will be used for service improvements.   

 The Battenburg Avenue site would be retained.  One option would be 
for children's services to move from Battenburg Avenue but there were 
plans to move services into this site as part of the second phase.   

 The average length of stay for adult mental health patients was 
approximately 21 days.  Oakdene can allow some patients to 
rehabilitate for longer periods using two integrated self-contained units 
within the main building however, respite care was not provided.   

 Mental health services will not be affected by the proposed changes to 
the St James Hospital site.  The majority of service users were from 
Portsmouth city.   

Page 5



 
6 

 

 Clive and Ros were having discussions with Portmouth City Council 
planning department regarding finding a site near to the St Marys 
campus for staff car parking.  The possibility of a ramped car park was 
being considered.   
 

The panel agreed that the plans were welcomed and that the issue of 
finding additional car parking was an issue that needed careful 
consideration.    
 
RECOMMENDED that Solent NHS Trust and NHS Property Services 
continue to work closely with the Council's planning department to 
find a suitable site for staff car parking. 
 
RESOLVED that the panel notes the report and welcomes the plans 
in principle.   

 
15 Dementia Action Group (AI 6) 

 
Stephen Corrigan, Senior Project Manager, Integrated Commissioning Unit 
and Justin Wallace-Cook, Assistant Head of Adult Social Care presented the 
report and in response to questions from the panel clarified the following 
points: 

 In 2013/14 there was an estimated 2,142 people in the city living with 
dementia, one third of these are men and two thirds are women as 
women generally live longer.  50 were suffering early onset but 2092 
were suffering later onset of the disease.  The city was very good at 
diagnosing dementia.   

 People in the 80-85+ age group are more likely to be diagnosed with 
dementia and evidence suggests that leading a healthy lifestyle can 
help to reduce the likelihood of developing some of the diseases which 
result in dementia.   

 The Dementia Action Group (DAG) is an alliance of statutory and 
voluntary sector providers set up by the Integrated Commissioning Unit 
(ICU) in June 2013.  It is not a decision making body and it is looking at 
what it can do to improve dementia care in the city.   

 The dementia café is an information hub for people with dementia and 
their carers to meet have beverages and regular guest speakers are 
invited to these.  Carers are also given support and information on 
dementia in a separate session.   The sites for the dementia café are at 
the Link Centre on Havant Road in Cosham and Southsea Community 
Centre.  However, alternative locations were being considered for the 
Southsea Community Centre including Southsea Library and the 
Museum.  The service is also considering moving from weekly cafés to 
fortnightly but having four venues.  It was noted that Fratton 
Community Centre may be a good venue.  In addition, Age UK is 
involved with the Dementia Action Group and offers their own drop in 
sessions.   

 Dementia is a growing problem with people living longer and shrinking 
budgets.  Early diagnosis of dementia is key to ensure people get the 
right care and support early on in order to live well with dementia and 
stay independent for as long as possible; this also can help services to 

Page 6



 
7 

 

be more cost effective.  Evidence showed that if people have the right 
support and advice this reduces the impact of dementia later on.   

 The council and CCG continue to review the services that they jointly 
commission and currently have four pilots underway to support people 
in the community and hospital.  The council and NHS provided 
dementia services are meeting the current demand as the diagnosis 
rate for dementia increases.  This will be regularly reviewed, although it 
is estimated that for at least the next three years resources are likely to 
be sufficient to meet need.     

 It was important to break the myths around dementia and dementia 
sufferers can have a good life once they are diagnosed.  Promoting 
dementia friendly communities is a key local action plan priority for 
2014/15.   

 Currently National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) 
guidance recommends that dementia patients are diagnosed by 
secondary care and there is currently a four week window between 
referral from GP to being seen by a consultant.   

 There was a lot of research and drug trials to improve the lives of 
people with dementia.  Officers were hopeful that a cure could be found 
but said that they needed to plan for the worst case scenario.   

 The Council's learning and development department and PHT were 
planning on buying a virtual dementia training course to make them 
feel what a dementia sufferer might feel  
 

ACTION 

 An annual update on dementia to the HOSP.   

 A dementia consultant invited to a future meeting.    

 Contact the Director of Public Health to ask whether there is an agenda 
on promoting dementia awareness.   

 
RESOLVED that the dementia action report be noted.   
 
 
The formal meeting ended at 12.00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Peter Eddis 
Chair 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

Report To:   Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 

Date:    11th March 2014  

 

Report By: Jackie Charlesworth, Deputy Head of Integrated 

Commissioning 

 

Subject: Consultation with service users, families and carers 

in respect of the proposal to close the Lowry Centre, 

Solent NHS Trust, and support people to access 

appropriate services in alternative settings 

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

The purpose of this report is to advise members of the plans to consult with service 

users, families and carers who currently use the Lowry Centre on the proposal to 

close the unit and support people to access appropriate support in the community, or 

alternative day service provision if required. 

 

2. Background 

The Lowry Centre operates as a day hospital, providing up to 20 places daily, 5 days 

per week, for older people with functional and organic mental health problems who 

are registered with GP's in Portsmouth City.  The Unit is part of a range of Older 

People's Mental Health Services commissioned from Solent NHS Trust. 

 

Referrals to the unit have been decreasing since 2012, and there are currently 20 

people using the service,  People are increasingly referred to the range of 

community services which have been commissioned as a result of implementing the 

Dementia Action Plan for the City, developed in response to the National Dementia 

Strategy - Living Well with Dementia (2009). 

 

The current and future direction of services is for early identification, re-ablement and 

support for people to live well with dementia in their communities, accessing short-

term secondary care and inpatient support as necessary.  People with dementia are 

no longer expected to live large parts of their lives within the NHS.  The new services 

being offered include: 

 

 The development of two Dementia Cafes, one in Southsea and one in 
Cosham. These provide information and support, and enable people living 
with dementia and carers to meet regularly and share their experiences with 
others in similar positions. 

 The introduction of dementia advisers, whose role is to be a single identifiable 
point of contact with knowledge and direct access to the whole range of 
available local services. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 The responsibility for the provision of the Carer Information and Support 
programme now being managed by The Alzheimer’s Society. This was 
formerly provided by Solent NHS Trust. 

 The launch of the Dementia Network by the Alzheimer’s Society in January 
2014. 

 The current trial of a range of reablement services such as The Dementia 
Voice Nurse, who can work with people with Dementia nearing the end of 
their lives and who have multiple and complex needs.   

 

It is important to stress that all of the people who currently use the service will 

continue to have their needs met in the future, in the event that the Unit closes.  This 

will be based on a full assessment of their needs and identification of the most 

appropriate community based services such as those listed above, or other services 

which already exist.  This follows the trend seen over the past two years of more 

people accessing community support rather than referral to hospital-based services. 

 

For those people who require ongoing day service provision, discussions have taken 

place with the Royal Albert Day Centre to ensure they have the capacity to 

accommodate additional clients.  We have been given assurance that there is 

sufficient capacity. 

 

3. Consultation Plan 

The service is well regarded by services users and families alike and it is 

acknowledged that any plans to change the service will create anxiety and concern 

for everyone concerned.  The impact on people affected by the proposal cannot be 

underestimated and we are working hard to ensure that the consultation process is 

handled as sensitively as possible, given the difficult issue that will be discussed, 

and that families, carers and service users have every opportunity to give their views 

and have their voice heard. 

 

To this end it has been agreed that: 

 

 The initial contact regarding the proposal will be via the service as relationships 

already exist between those staff and managers, with families and service users 

 People will be offered the choice of individual meetings and discussions, (which 

will be on-going throughout the consultation period) as well as at least two wider 

meetings where people can come together as a group with service managers and 

commissioners to discuss issues together 

 The consultation will take place over 12 weeks, but be flexible in its dealings to 

ensure people’s needs are met 

 People will be given information about access to the  independent advocacy 

service 

Page 10



 

 ‘Best Interest’ assessments will be carried out as part of the assessment process 

and used to influence the decisions about the type of support people need in the 

future 

 

The consultation timeline is outlined below: 

 

Date/  
Week 

commencing 

Action Progress 

17/2/14 Joint CCG/Solent letter to service users 
and families advising them of proposal and 
consultation plans 

completed 

 Early discussions with staff around 
proposal 

Service Manager met with staff 
to explain the letter being sent 
to users and families, and 
about the future process for 
discussions with staff once the 
CCG decision had been made 

 Assessments of current service user's 
needs begins 

Work started as planned 

24/2/14 1st families consultation meeting (27th) Meeting held at Lowry Centre  
3 service users attended, 
supported by some staff 
members 

 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

One individual meeting 
arranged for 10/3/14 

3/3/14 2nd families consultation meeting  (3rd  

March) 
Meeting held at Lowry Centre,  
15 service users and family 
members attended, supported 
by some staff members.  

 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

No further meetings have been 
requested. No families or 
service users have requested 
future service-wide meetings 

 Ongoing assessments of current service 
users including clinical risk management 
plans as required 

This work is in progress and 
will be continuous throughout 
the process 

10/3/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

Family didn't turn up for the 
meeting, this will be 
rearranged 

 Early discussions with families about future 
service provision 

These meetings are in the 
process of being arranged. 

 Write up and review feedback from service 
users and families, and identify any issues 
which need to be addressed.  Send write-
up to service users and families. 

Draft write-up written.  Being 
checked and reviewed (as at 
11/3/14). 
 
Need to check what support is 
available in the community for 
people with functional illness 

17/3/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

 

 Early discussions with families about future  

Page 11



 

Date/  
Week 

commencing 

Action Progress 

service provision 

24/3/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

 

 Early discussions with families about future 
service provision 

 

31/3/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

 

7/4/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

 

14/4/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

 

 Draft CCC report developed  

21/4/14 Individual service user, family/carer 
discussions and/or meetings as requested 

 

28/4/14 Consultation period ends  

 Final report written  

5/5/14 CCC decision meeting (7th)  

 Letter to families with decision  

 Future plans developed  

 

 

4. Progress 

Two service-wide meetings have been held and were attended by 18 service users, 

and family members, and similar points and issues were raised at each.  All those 

who attended were concerned about the proposal, and there was anxiety about what 

the future held for people who currently use the service, and those who might need 

support in the future.  The service is highly valued and seen by users and families 

alike as a safe environment where people who are vulnerable can find support and 

companionship, and where there are caring staff who understand them and help 

them maintain their recovery.  In some cases staff and service users had known 

each other for a number of years.   

 

There was a degree of scepticism about whether the decision had already been 

made to close the service and whether people's views held any weight.  Assurances 

were given that the decision had not yet been made and this was a genuine 

consultation where people's views would be listened to and taken into account. 

 

One thing which emerged during the discussion was the lack of knowledge about the 

community-based support for people with functional illness, such as depression or 

anxiety.  It was acknowledged that a great deal had been done to provide community 

support for people with dementia, and a review of support for people with functional 

illness is being followed up by the project team.  

 

People also wanted to know what support was available for carers.  It was agreed to 

provide this information to families, and also make this available through the service. 

Page 12



 

 

Healthwatch have been advised that the consultation is taking place, along with the 

Dementia Action Group.  To date we have not received any further communication 

from these two groups. 

 

We are sensitive to the fact that consultation is currently being undertaken about the 

reprovision of the service provided at the Patey Centre.  There is a chance that the 

families, press, public and campaigners may well link the two consultations together 

and this may generate a deal of adverse publicity for both the CCG and Solent NHS 

Trust.  To this effect, the relevant Communications teams have been involved in 

discussions about the proposal and preparation of press statements.  The PCC 

commnications team has also been kept informed of this issue and will have copies 

of press statements etc as appropriate.  However, at the time of writing there has 

been no contact from the press, public or campaigners on this issue. 

 

Future Actions 

We are currently in week 4 of the consultation process and no further service-wide 

meetings have been requested so far. However, there is sufficient flexibility in the 

consultation plan to accommodate this should further meetings be required.  Staff  

are currently arranging individual meetings with each service user and their family 

and/or carers to discuss needs and how people could be supported in the future. 

 

The outcome of the work into the identification of community services for people with 

functional illness will be fed into this process. 

 

Following the end of the consultation period a report will be compiled for the Clinical 

Commissioning Committee of Portsmouth CCG, which will combine the original 

proposal with the outcomes of the consultation and an Equality Impact Assessment.  

This meeting will take place in May.  CCC members will use this report to help them 

make a decision about the proposal.  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



1 
 

 

  

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

Options for the provision of Vascular Surgery for Southern Hampshire 

Update for Health and Scrutiny Committee 

NHS England Wessex Area Team 

1 SUMMARY AND PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide members with information on proposals to develop a 

Vascular Services Network for Southern Hampshire.  This proposal is in response to the publication 

of a national service specification for Specialised Vascular Services in February 2013, for adoption 

from October 2013. The proposal ensures that vascular services in Southern Hampshire are 

compliant with the service standards identified in the specification and are sustainable in the future. 

 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS:  

2.1 Members are asked to consider the proposals identified in this paper and establish whether the 

proposals and preferred option, option 4, constitutes a substantial change in service.  

 

2.2 It is recognised that if this proposal constitutes a substantial change in service by more than one 

Health Overview Scrutiny Committee (HOSC), it will need to be considered by a joint HOSC. 

 

3 INTRODUCTION 

The Health and Social Care Act 2011 transferred the direct commissioning of specialised services 

from NHS Specialised Commissioning to NHS England.  NHS England Wessex Area Team is 

responsible for commissioning and monitoring specialised services provided to the residents of 

Southampton, Hampshire, Isle of Wight and Portsmouth, as well as those in Thames Valley.  All 

specialised services across England have been subject to national review, vascular surgery is one of 

these specialised services.  In February 2013 the national service specification for Specialised 

Vascular Services was published, for adoption from October 2013.   

The national service specification identifies key requirements that all Trusts that provide a vascular 

service must meet.  In order for vascular services in Southern Hampshire meet the key requirements 

identified in the specification a number of options have been considered.  

This paper provides an update to the HOSC on the development of these options as part of the 

statutory duty set out in section 244 of the NHS Act 2006, superseded by regulation 13 of the Local 

Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 to 

consult with the Local Authority on proposals that may be a significant development and variation in 

health services.  

Since December 2008 we have carried out a thorough process to determine what we believe is the 

best solution for providing vascular services across Southern Hampshire.   

Throughout this process we have been mindful of the Secretary of States four tests for service 

reconfiguration: 

• support from GP commissioners;  

Page 16



3 
 

• strengthened public and patient engagement;  

• clarity on the clinical evidence base; and   

• consistency with current and prospective patient choice 

It is the view of commissioners that the proposal outlined in this document has been developed 
taking proper account of these four tests. 

4 BACKGROUND 

Vascular services are for people with disorders of the arteries and veins. These include narrowing or 

widening of arteries, blocked vessels and veins, but not diseases of the heart and vessels in the 

chest.   

These disorders can reduce the amount of blood reaching the limbs or brain, or cause sudden blood 

loss if an over-stretched artery bursts. Vascular specialists also support other medical treatments, 

such as major trauma, kidney dialysis and chemotherapy. 

Complex vascular surgery covers: 

 People with abdominal aortic aneurysms (AAA): This is a condition in which the main artery 

in the abdomen becomes stretched and prone to bursting.  Timely detection and treatment 

of abdominal aortic aneurysms prevents later problems with rupture and bleeding, and can 

be life-saving.  Treatment for AAA can be either by open surgery or by a much less invasive 

approach through the major blood vessels which is called endovascular surgery (EVAR).  

 Screening people for abdominal aortic aneurysms (AAA):  People with aneurysms are 

unlikely to notice any symptoms prior to a rupture so a national population-based screening 

programme is being rolled out, offering screening via an ultrasound to men in their 65th year. 

Men aged over 65 are not invited but can self-refer. 

 People with strokes or transient ischaemic attacks (TIAs or mini-strokes): Sometimes, these 

problems with the blood supply to the brain occur because of a narrowing in a blood vessel 

in the neck called the carotid artery. This can be treated with an operation to improve the 

flow of blood and reduce the risk of future strokes.  

 People with poor blood supply to the feet and legs: Some people, particularly those who 

smoke or have diabetes, can develop narrowing in the blood supply to the legs and feet. This 

can cause pain on walking, ulceration and infection. Surgical or interventional radiological 

treatment can improve the blood supply, make walking easier and prevent the serious 

complications of inadequate blood supply.  When limbs cannot be saved vascular surgeons 

are also needed to undertake major amputations.  

There are also roles for vascular surgery supporting other major specialities such as: 

 

 People with other conditions needing vascular services:  Vascular surgeons and 

interventional radiologists support a number of other services including as trauma, 

neurosurgery, cardiac surgery, dermatology, clinical laboratory services, nephrology, plastic 

surgery, and other surgical disciplines. 

Page 17



4 
 

 

There is a great deal of change underway within the vascular specialty, at both a national and 

international level, and this is having a big impact on services locally.  Advances in medical 

treatments, a greater focus on prevention of vascular disease and the screening programme for 

abdominal aortic aneurysms (AAA) mean that treatments for vascular conditions are improving. The 

number of ‘open’ surgical procedures performed is already decreasing, and this trend is expected to 

continue as more people are screened and the number of ‘key hole’ style procedures increase.  This 

means that the future arrangements for vascular services must be both robust enough and dynamic 

enough to keep up with these advances. 

 

In Southern Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, about 640 people require complex vascular surgery 

each year from a population of 1, 497,000. This represents about 0.04% of the population. 

 

Vascular specialists in the UK and Ireland have set out how vascular services should be organised.  

The Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland (VSGBI) and The National Confidential Enquiry into 

Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) have both published recommendations around vascular 

provision.  The recommendations state that the best outcomes are achieved in specialist vascular 

units with dedicated vascular teams available 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and using new 

technologies that improve clinical outcomes.    

Following national reorganisation of NHS Services introduced in April 2013, all specialised services 

across England have been subject to national review, vascular surgery being one of these specialised 

services.  Each service has been reviewed by a Clinical Reference Group (CRG) and national service 

specifications have been developed for each programme based on delivering safe, consistent and 

sustainable networked services.   In February 2013 the national service specification for specialised 

vascular services was published, for adoption from October 2013.  This specification identifies the 

key requirements for hospitals delivering vascular services so that patients get the best possible 

results.  

The national service specification for specialised vascular surgery identifies key requirements that all 

Trusts that provide a vascular service must meet.  These are:  

 Vascular services must be organised into a network model of care following the principles 

and governance set out in the national guidance on Operational Delivery Networks with all 

elective and emergency arterial care carried out in an arterial centre. 

 There are at least 6 vascular surgeons employed in each arterial centre. (N.B. The Royal 

College of Surgeons has designated vascular surgery as a speciality which means that general 

surgeons can no longer treat vascular patients) 

 All vascular consultants working in vascular networks must routinely enter data regarding 

index procedures should be entered into the National Vascular Registry (NVR.) 

The national service specification also describes how the vascular network needs to be organised to 

allow for sufficient procedures to be undertaken.  It states that the network must: 

Page 18



5 
 

 Cover a population of at least 800,000 people in order that each surgeon is able to perform 

at least 10 AAA procedures per year.  This will mean that each centre will be undertaking 

the recommended minimum of 60 AAA operations a year.  Medical evidence shows that 

patients have a better chance of a successful recovery if they have their operations at 

centres which perform higher numbers of specialised vascular operations.  Currently the 

catchment area for University Hospital Southampton is 900,000 and for Portsmouth 

Hospitals NHS Trust 650,000. 

 Have at least six vascular surgeons and vascular interventional radiologists to make sure 

that there is sufficient out -of- hours emergency cover.   Up to 40% of vascular patients are 

emergencies or urgent referrals.  Consultants are directly involved in the care of most of 

these patients and the out-of-hours workload is more onerous than many other surgical 

specialties.  Having surgeons on call 24/7 means no delays in treatment and a 1 in 6 rota 

ensures that these surgeons are properly rested.   The National Vascular Registry currently 

reports that Southampton has 6 vascular surgeons and Portsmouth has 3 undertaking more 

than five cases annually.  

 Invest in specialist interventional radiology to carry more key hole than open surgery.  

These new treatments are less invasive than open surgery and increasingly favoured by 

patients. Some highly-specialist thoracic EVAR currently goes to London. Costs, and patient 

inconvenience, are reduced with a local service.  Both Southampton and Portsmouth 

currently undertake surgery using EVAR.  

 Delivers the advances in screening for aortic aneurysm.  Planned operations have better 

outcomes than emergency operations.  Screening identifies aortic aneurysms so more 

operations can be planned.  Networks enable better co-ordination and monitoring of the 

screening programme and quality is scrutinised at network meetings.  The Hampshire AAA 

screening programme covers Southampton and surrounding areas, Portsmouth and the Isle 

of Wight and the south of the county. 

In order to provide sustainable vascular services for Southern Hampshire the key requirements for 

vascular services have been reviewed and a number of proposals have been considered.  The 

purpose of this document is to present these proposals and to clarify the reasoning behind the 

preferred option.  

5 THE CASE FOR CHANGE 

Medical evidence shows that the UK could do so much better for patients in comparison to other 

European countries for some vascular procedures. The UK has the highest death rates in Western 

Europe following elective abdominal aortic aneurysm surgery and is among the slowest nations for 

uptake of new endovascular technology, which allows some procedures to be undertaken by 

‘keyhole’ style inventions which avoid the need for open surgery.  Patients in the UK are not always 

treated by a vascular specialist and stay longer in hospital following their surgery than the rest of 

Europe.   

Vascular specialists in the UK and Ireland have set out how vascular services should be organised.  

The Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland (VSGBI) and The National Confidential Enquiry into 

Page 19



6 
 

Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) have both published recommendations around emergency 

vascular provision.  The NCEPOD Report 2005 into patient outcome and death following abdominal 

aortic aneurysm (AAA) found the overall mortality rate for elective surgery was 6.2%.  

The national service specification for specialised vascular services is written in the light of these 

recommendations and published evidence of the Department of Health (DH), the Royal College of 

Radiologists (RCR), and all relevant NICE Guidance.   The VSGBI and NCEPOD guidance on the 

provision of emergency and elective vascular surgery services states that the best outcomes are 

achieved in specialist vascular units with dedicated vascular teams available 24 hours a day, seven 

days a week.   The VSGBI recommends fewer and higher volume units.  The evidence supports 

minimum numbers of elective procedures that vascular units should undertake and links surgeon 

elective volume with outcome. 

In addition the vascular specialty is changing with more operations being performed by 

Interventional Radiologists using a less invasive approach through the major blood vessels which is 

called endovascular surgery (EVAR).  There is also a new screening programme for AAA.  This means 

that less and less ‘open’ vascular operations are being performed; this will have a big impact on 

services locally.  

Locally vascular services are good, with outcomes for patients in Queen Alexandra Hospital 

Portsmouth and University Hospital Southampton comparable with European levels.   In some 

hospitals though there are not enough consultants to provide high quality 24 hour care for patients 

with vascular diseases. This means that not all patients are treated by a specialist consultant, 

particularly those needing treatment out of hours.  

Another issue is the availability of interventional radiologists.  Skilled interventional radiology 

consultants can use specialist techniques to save limbs and organs that might otherwise have to be 

removed.  Changing the service so that round-the-clock interventional radiology rotas become 

possible will ensure that no-one misses out on these benefits because of where and when they 

become ill. 

At the moment, not all patients in Southern Hampshire are able to access the latest treatments and 

techniques. For example, a type of treatment for blood clots which are blocking important arteries is 

not at present available at all times in every hospital in our region.    

In order that local centres perform enough operations in the future to maintain the skills of 

surgeons, and therefore maintain good outcomes for our patients, the current arrangements need 

to change.  Our proposal is to change the current arrangement so that services are provided through 

a Vascular Network where major complex surgical procedures are undertaken in a major arterial 

centre, rather than provided in a lot of stand-alone centres only carrying out a few procedures each 

year.   Concentrating major complex surgical procedures into a major arterial centre will ensure that 

patients are taken to the hospital promptly, ensuring everyone gets the treatment they need, when 

they need it.  This may mean that some patients have to travel further for their surgery but the 

Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland states that the longer travel time will be more than 

outweighed by the better outcomes for all local patients. 

Page 20



7 
 

As previously described the national service specification for specialised vascular services was 

published in October 2013.  This specification identifies the key requirements for hospitals delivering 

vascular services so that patients get the best possible results.  We are determined to improve our 

local NHS so that these standards are met in full and this can only achieve this by changing the way 

that vascular services are provided.   

Any new plans for vascular services must be sustainable.    

6 PROGRESS TO DATE 

Since December 2008 we have carried out a thorough process to determine what we believe is the 

best solution for providing vascular services across Southern Hampshire. 

Throughout this process we have been mindful of the Secretary of States four tests for service 
reconfiguration: 

• support from GP commissioners;  

• strengthened public and patient engagement;  

• clarity on the clinical evidence base; and   

• consistency with current and prospective patient choice 

This section provides a time line of how the proposals for vascular services have been identified. 

December 2008 - The South Central Cardiovascular Network produced a report into the provision of 

emergency vascular surgery for people living within the NHS South Central area.  

October 2009 - An external report was commissioned on the future development of vascular surgery 

provision across the South Central region of England.  The report concluded that the current 

arrangements for service provision were not sustainable and therefore units covering larger areas 

were needed. 

April 2010 - Prompted by the 2009 report, NHS South Central asked the South Central Cardiovascular 

Network to develop a detailed service specification for vascular services. The aim of this specification 

was to improve outcomes for local patients by ensuring that local services complied with national 

standards and Vascular Society guidelines.  A local Vascular Surgery Service Specification was 

developed with local vascular surgeons and interventional radiologists and agreed, and an Options 

Appraisal document, which included a ‘Case for Change’, was produced. 

Oct 2010 - Local hospital Trusts were asked to submit proposals for achieving the quality standards 

set out in the service specification. 

Dec 2010- Proposals were received from University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust, 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust and Frimley Park NHS Foundation Trust. In December 2010 an 

assessing panel received presentations from interested trusts. 

Following these presentations the panel recommendations were that:  

Page 21



8 
 

• A network was established between Southampton and Portsmouth vascular services, 

with all emergency and planned complex vascular surgery being carried out at 

Southampton.  

• The longstanding relationship between Basingstoke and North Hampshire NHS Trust and 

Frimley Park Hospitals NHS Trust vascular services should continue, with all emergency 

and planned complex vascular surgery being carried out at Frimley Park Hospital. 

• Day case, diagnostic and outpatient vascular services should be supported in local 

hospitals.  

April 2011 - To ensure that lay representatives, clinical experts and GP commissioners were in 

agreement with the service specification the Cardiovascular Network involved GP commissioners, 

LINk representatives, the Vascular Surgery Strategic Group, South Central PCTs, South Central 

Strategic Health Authority, South Central acute Trusts and clinical advisors in a review of the service 

specification. 

June 2011 - Portsmouth Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel members expressed concern about a 

model which involved moving complex vascular surgery from Queen Alexandra Hospital.  

August to Sept 2011 -  NHS South Central undertook a six week engagement exercise with the 

public and key stakeholders on proposals for three clinical areas; major trauma, stroke and vascular 

surgery. Details of the engagement exercise were also shared with key stakeholders in the South 

East Coast SHA area. During September 2011 Portsmouth submitted a further proposal suggesting 

that vascular surgery should be retained at Queen Alexandra Hospital in Portsmouth and that this 

provided emergency and planned care for the Portsmouth population and the population of 

Chichester, utilising clinicians from Chichester.    However, the bid was not supported by the Lead 

Clinicians at St Richard’s Hospital, Chichester, who identified that they would be developing a 

network with Brighton.  Following this NHS Sussex engaged with residents in Sussex about vascular 

services in the area. They have now established a hub and spoke arrangement with Chichester and 

more services have been centralised in Brighton.   

 Oct 2011 - Feedback from the engagement exercise revealed: 

 Concern about the implications for other services at Queen Alexandra Hospital, Portsmouth 

if the option to provide emergency and elective complex inpatient vascular surgery from 

Southampton General Hospital were to go ahead 

 Interest in exploring the option for surgeons at Queen Alexandra Hospital to work with 

surgeons at St Richards Hospital, Chichester to provide a service to people living in the 

Portsmouth, south east Hampshire and Chichester areas. 

 

Oct 2011 - A second expert panel was held on 20 October, 2011 to consider a new proposal from 

Portsmouth Hospital Trust and the output of discussions between clinicians at Southampton General 

Hospital and Queen Alexandra Hospital to work as part of a network across the two hospital sites.   

It concluded that: 

Page 22



9 
 

1) The proposal of a vascular service across the St Richards and Queen Alexandra Hospital 

sites would be clinically viable for the present time but was not the ideal solution for 

patients in the long term.   The panel’s main concerns were the lack of involvement from 

St Richard’s clinicians and management which meant that the proposal could not be 

delivered.  

2) The option of a single vascular service offered from the two hospital sites would provide 

the best chance for long term sustainable vascular services for local people.  

 

Oct 2011 - The National Clinical Assessment Team, led by Professor Matt Thompson, Professor of 

Vascular Surgery, St George’s Vascular Institute concluded that there should be one vascular centre 

for the Southampton, Hampshire, Portsmouth and Isle of Wight area based at Southampton. 

Nov 2011 - An engagement report was considered at a meeting of the SHIP PCT Cluster Board on 

November 1  

Nov 2011 - Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust said that it believed it could make the necessary changes 

to meet the standards laid down within the Service Specification in its own right, rather than in a 

network model with University Hospitals Southampton NHS Foundation Trust or with St Richards 

Hospital, Chichester.  The SHIP PCT Cluster asked Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust to provide a 

detailed case for how it will meet the service specification as a standalone centre. 

On November 23, the SHIP PCT Cluster received a proposal from Portsmouth Hospital NHS Trust for 

a standalone centre at Queen Alexandra Hospital.  Local commissioners and GPs reviewed the 

proposal and asked for further detail from the Trust which resulted in a revised proposal submitted 

on December 14, 2011. 

January 2012 - This proposal was reviewed by the panel of clinical experts on January 5, 2012 and 

they concluded that it was clinically viable in the short term.  However the panel felt that the 

proposal posed a number of challenges in the longer term particularly around recruiting sufficient 

staffing, ensuring that a rota of surgeons was fully occupied and offering the right level of 

development and training to ensure that clinical best practice was maintained.  

Page 23



10 
 

   

February 2012 - The former SHIP PCT Cluster advised stakeholders that it was not possible to 

publically consult on a network model as providers could not agree on this collaboration. 

June 2012 - Hampshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee hosted a meeting involving 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust, University Southampton NHS Foundation Trust, commissioners and 

a national independent clinical expert Professor Jonathan Earnshaw. The meeting encouraged both 

Trusts to work collaboratively and for Professor Earnshaw to facilitate further discussions between 

clinicians. 

February 2013 - National specification for vascular services published and the former SHIP PCT 

Cluster and shadow CCGs restated their intention to commission in line with the specification. 

September 2013 - the Wessex Clinical Senate, an independent group of experts who assist 

commissioners to put patient outcomes and quality at the heart of the commissioning system, 

considered proposals on how vascular services should be set up in Southern Hampshire.   The Senate 

made a number of recommendations on Vascular Surgery in South East Hampshire.  Details of this 

can be found at: South of England » Publications and reports 

7 OPTIONS FOR CHANGE 

As a result of the earlier engagement about the future organisational arrangements for vascular 

services in Southern Hampshire, we developed a long list of options. 

Option 1: do nothing 

Option 1 would maintain services as they are with Southampton continuing as the arterial centre for 
the Southampton, Winchester and West Hampshire Vascular Network, and Portsmouth remaining as 
a stand-alone vascular centre for Portsmouth.   

This map shows the 

vascular network 

configuration following 

the vascular review. 

 

Page 24



11 
 

Option 2: establish two vascular networks  

Option 2 would create two vascular networks with Southampton continuing as the arterial centre for 
the Southampton, Winchester and West Hampshire Network, and creating another Network in 
Portsmouth, utilising surgeons from St Richard’s Hospital Chichester, and the Queen Alexandra 
Portsmouth, to serve Portsmouth, south east Hampshire and the Chichester area. 

Option 3: establish a Southern Hampshire Vascular Network and move ALL major complex arterial 
vascular surgical procedures to Southampton 

Option3 would mean that a network would be established between Southampton and Portsmouth 
vascular services.  The network would have one major arterial centre which would be located in 
Southampton.   The arterial centre would undertake all emergency and planned major complex 
arterial procedures with minor procedures being undertaken as close to the patients home as 
possible.   Following surgery in Southampton all patients would be able to transfer home or back to 
their local hospital for their post-operative stay if this was needed.   
 

Option 3 would include: 

 Establishing a single rota for emergency seven day vascular assessment and interventions 
and support for the major trauma and renal centres. 

 All emergency and non-emergency AAA patients being operated on in Southampton.    

 All infra-inguinal by-pass surgery being undertaken in Southampton 

 All surgery following a transient ischaemic attack (TIA) or stroke (such as carotid 
endarterectomy) taking place in Southampton. 

 All major amputations being undertaken in Southampton. 

 Patients requiring minor procedures would continue to be cared for in hospitals as close to 
their home as possible. 
 

Option 4: establish a Southern Hampshire Vascular Network and move, on a phased basis, all 
major complex arterial vascular surgical procedures to Southampton.  (Options for surgery 
following a transient ischaemic attack (TIA) or stroke (such as carotid endarterectomy CEA) and 
major amputations will be considered at a later date following successful implementation of the 
initial phases.) 

Our fourth, and preferred option, is that all of the hospitals in Southern Hampshire work in 

partnership to deliver vascular services as part of a Vascular Network achieved on a phased basis, 

the initial phases concentrating on surgery for AAA .   

Major amputations and infra-inguinal by-pass surgery have not been included in the initial phase as 
there are a larger numbers of patient numbers who undergo these procedures, some of whom will 
require long episodes of post- operative recovery and rehabilitation.  Our aim is that any ongoing 
treatment takes place as close to the patients’ home as possible.  We therefore need to make sure 
that any proposed changes in services mean that patients can return to their local hospital at the 
earliest opportunity.   

The national service specification for vascular services allows for a period of evaluation stating that 
“Provider networks will work towards the aim of all leg amputations being undertaken in arterial 
centres by 2015 and develop a robust implementation plan to achieve this”   

Larger numbers of patients undergo a CEA each year which means that centralising this service 
would impact on a larger number of people.  It will be beneficial to allow some time for evaluation 
before taking any further steps to centralise services, when this will involve more significant 
numbers.   It is also noted that further work is underway nationally to assess the provision of CEAs 

Page 25



12 
 

surgery across the country, so allowing some time to elapse will enable more evidence to be 
obtained that will support future decisions as to where this procedure is best undertaken.   

The network would have one major arterial centre which would be located in Southampton the 
major trauma centre for the area, but provided by a single clinical service across both Southampton 
and Portsmouth.  The arterial centre would undertake the small number of major complex arterial 
procedures with minor procedures being undertaken as close to the patients home as possible.   The 
single clinical service would bring together clinicians from across the network into joint surgical and 
interventional radiological rotas.  This will ensure adequate clinical expertise is available across the 
network.   Joint multidisciplinary teams (MDT) would meet on a regular basis to discuss the care of 
patients and how they should most appropriately be managed.   The network will focus on the needs 
of the local population and will ensure that where possible, diagnosis, day surgery, reablement and 
rehabilitation takes place as close to the patients home as possible. 

It is proposed that there would be a phased approach to the implementation of this option, which is 

based on and takes account of the recommendations made by the Wessex Clinical Senate in 

September 2013: 

 Phase 1 would include: 

 Establishing a single rota for emergency seven day vascular assessment and interventions 
and support for the major trauma and renal centres. 

 All emergency AAA patients (open and EVAR) being operated on in Southampton.   This 
work will take place in collaboration with the South Central Ambulance Service and local 
A&E departments to ensure that there are no delays in patients receiving the care they 
need.  

 Ensuring that out-patient clinics, initial investigations, surgery for venous disease, re-
ablement and rehabilitation would also be carried out as close to the patients home as 
possible.  All of these services would continue to be provided in the local hospitals 
providing that they meet with defined quality standards. 

 Establishing regular MDTs and joint training opportunities. 

 Considering the options and timescales for redirecting all non-emergency AAA patients, 
including those who have been picked up as part of the AAA screening programme, so that 
they are operated on in Southampton.  

 

Phase 1 would be implemented before the end of December 2014.  This date could potentially be 
brought forward but this is dependent on the providers reaching agreement sooner.  

 Phase 2 would include: 

 All non-emergency AAA patients (open and EVAR), including those who have been picked 
up as part of the AAA screening programme, being operated on in Southampton, if not 
already implemented as part of phase 1. 

 Considering the options for phase 3.  
 

Phase 2 would be carried out immediately after Phase 1, and therefore be implemented from 
January 2015.  

Phase 3 

As part of this phased approach, it is proposed that there is a formal review before the end of 
2015/16, once phases 1 and 2 have been completed and the new arrangements have had time to 
become properly established.  Under phase 3, commissioners and providers should review the 
options relating to surgery following a transient ischaemic attack (TIA) or stroke (such as carotid 

Page 26



13 
 

endarterectomy CEA) and major amputations, and agree the way forwards by the end of March 
2016.  

The options and timescales for patients who need a infra-inguinal by-pass may also need to be 
considered as part of phase 3, if no formal decision about this surgery has been made under phase 2 
of the proposal.  It is important to note that the management of patients needing an infra-inguinal 
by-pass is key to reducing the number of major amputations, which means that this will need careful 
consideration.    

As previously highlighted, no decisions have been made as to the outcome for the procedures that 
need to be considered under phase 3, and further discussion will need to take place between all key 
stakeholders before any further recommendations are made.   

The work being undertaken nationally in regard to major amputations and CEAs will influence any 

future recommendations.  The exact details of any future proposals will need to be planned in 

collaboration with vascular surgeons and other key clinicians from both Portsmouth and 

Southampton.  

8 OPTIONS APPRAISAL   

Option 1: do nothing 

It is not possible to leave services as they are now because the existing service at the Queen 

Alexandra Hospital Portsmouth does not meet the minimum standard identified in the NHS National 

Service Specification for Specialised Vascular Services. 

Option 2: establish two vascular networks  

This option has not been considered as St. Richards Hospital in Chichester has now formed a 

Vascular Network with Brighton.  

Option 3: establish a Southern Hampshire Vascular Network and move all major complex arterial 

vascular surgery to Southampton 

This option would provide long term sustainable vascular services for local people and it meets all of 

the service specification requirements.   However, this option has been discounted on the basis that 

as a consensus could not be reached between Southampton and Portsmouth as to how this should 

be implemented.  It has been concluded that this model would not be the preferred option, as 

without agreement from the trusts, commissioning such a large scale change could create risks to 

the safe transition of services for patients.   

Option 4: establish a Southern Hampshire Vascular Network and move a specified group of major 

complex arterial vascular surgical procedures to Southampton 

The proposal to establish a Southern Hampshire Vascular Network and move all major complex 

arterial vascular surgery to Southampton has been assessed by all key stakeholders including an 

expert clinical panel, the National Clinical Assessment Team and the Wessex Clinical Senate, and it is 

broadly recognised that this provides the best chance for long term sustainable vascular services for 

local people.  It meets all of the service specification requirements and therefore provides the best 

option for improving outcomes for local people.  However, delivering this on a phased basis reduces 

the impact of the change on Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust in terms of loss of income, and allows 

Page 27



14 
 

both Trusts more time to plan for the changes  and work together in implementing them.  This will 

ensure that this change can be implemented successfully, in a safe and sustainable way.  

The option enables as many vascular procedures as possible to be undertaken close to the patients’ 

home whilst concentrating highly specialist skills for the most complex surgery.   Our preferred 

option will establish a Southern Hampshire Vascular Network with major complex vascular surgery 

carried out in the future in Southampton with local services remaining as they are currently.  This 

option would bring all of the vascular expertise, vascular surgeons, interventional radiologists and 

other key staff, into a single service.   

Option 4 ensures that patients will receive the best level of care, at the right time and in the right 

place, with services consistently provided by a consultant-led team 24/7.  Developments in 

technology mean that for emergency patients, open surgical procedures will be minimised, leading 

to improved outcomes, reduction in risk, reduction in post-operative complications, and a reduction 

in the length of time spent in hospital as an in-patient, services will be more planned and robust, and 

will always be provided by a consultant led team 24/7.  Non-emergency patients will benefit by 

having services tailored to their needs. This level of service will be more structured, and patients will 

not be affected by the need to cancel planned interventions due to emergency admissions.  This 

represents a more efficient use of resources, and the consequence will lead to more patients being 

treated at the right time and in the right place.  This will result in greater efficiencies and 

effectiveness. 

The risks and benefits of all of the options have been assessed and take account of the changes in 

technology and best practice.  

The impact of the proposal on other service providers, including the NHS, local authorities and the 

voluntary sector and also the wider community has been considered in the development of this 

proposal.  

The workforce implications have been considered and the option proposed provides a long term 

sustainable workforce for the provision of vascular services for local people. 

Once the preferred option has been agreed the Wessex Area Team will work in collaboration with 

the trusts to ensure that the appropriate project support and mechanisms are in place to safeguard 

implementation within the agreed timescales. 

If the HOSC agree that this proposal constitutes major service reconfiguration we will be going out 

for public consultation on 26 May 2014.  The public consultation will close at the end of August 

2014.  The agreed proposal will be implemented commencing 1 November 2014.  If agreement from 

the Trusts is reached sooner, the implementation date will be brought forward in line with their 

plans.   

It should be noted that the Wessex Clinical Senate recommended that: 

• As a matter of urgency, all emergency and elective major inpatient interventions (such as 

AAA repair, symptomatic and ruptured aneurysm treatment) should be delivered at 

University Hospitals Southampton 

 

Page 28



15 
 

9 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT  

There has been ongoing dialogue with stakeholders from across Southern Hampshire in the 

development of these options.  This includes: 

• Heath and Scrutiny Committees  

• NHS England, Medical Directorate 

• Specialised Commissioning  

• Wessex Clinical Senate (Chair: Prof William Roche - The Senate’s role is to provide high quality, 

independent, non-biased clinical advice).  The senate reviewed all options in September 2013 

and the proposal was supported. 

• NHS England Wessex Area Team 

• NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG, NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG, NHS Portsmouth CCG, 

NHS Southampton CCG, NHS Isle of Wight CCG,  NHS West Hampshire CCGs   

• Trusts vascular surgeons.   

• There are several Healthwatch groups who will have an interest in the development including: 

 Hampshire 

 Isle of Wight 

 Portsmouth  

 Southampton 

 

Between August and September 2011 an engagement exercise took place to as part of the Safe and 

Sustainable Acute Services: Stroke, Major Trauma and Vascular Surgery review.  The engagement 

exercise identified a number of concerns about the proposals put forward at that time.  Local people 

told us that they wished to see a collaborative vascular network model developed, with surgeons 

and interventional radiologists working across both sites.  The current proposal takes account of the 

wishes of local people.  In addition a Vascular Patient Reference Group was formed in 2012 to 

discuss the implications of the proposal. 

 

During the autumn of 2010 a review of vascular services in South Central (which included South 

Hampshire) was undertaken.    As a result of this review a local Vascular Surgery Service Specification 

was drafted and agreed, and an Options Appraisal document, which included a ‘Case for Change’, 

was produced.   Across the region service provider were invited to submit proposals for the provision 

of vascular services in line with the service specification and national guidance.   In December 2010 

an assessing panel received presentations from interested trusts. 

 

Following these presentations the panel recommendations were that:  

• A network was established between Southampton and Portsmouth vascular services, with all 

emergency and planned complex vascular surgery being carried out at Southampton.  

• The longstanding relationship between Basingstoke and North Hampshire NHS Trust and 

Frimley Park Hospitals NHS Trust vascular services should continue, with all emergency and 

planned complex vascular surgery being carried out at Frimley Park Hospital. 

• Day case, diagnostic and outpatient vascular services should be supported in local hospitals. 

There are four patients/carers on the national Clinical Reference Group for vascular services which 
developed the national specification which informed the local proposal. 

Page 29



16 
 

 
In addition a local Patient Reference Group was formed in 2012 which provided an opportunity to 
discuss the improved quality being sought for patients and the practical considerations such as travel 
and patient information for patients accessing vascular interventions. 
 

There is a group of people including members of the public, hospital staff and politicians that do not 

wish to see any change to vascular services in Portsmouth.  Every effort has been made to share the 

evidence base and the benefits for patients as a consequence of this change, and this work will be 

on-going.  

Individual vascular surgeons have different views as to how services should be delivered, with some 

having more regard to the new national standards than others, and some being more open to 

collaborative working than others.  Discussions are on-going. 

 

10 IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

In July 2011 a South Central Vascular Surgery Review, Strategic Equality Impact assessment was 

undertaken.   The impact assessment takes consideration of the demographic profile of the area and 

the impact on vulnerable people and health equality. 

The impact assessment is currently in the process of being refreshed.  

It is important to note that Specialised Services by their nature, deal with low volumes of patient 

numbers, therefore the number of patients that will be affected by this change are relatively small.     

Under the terms of this proposal, patients requiring complex vascular surgery will be required to 

travel to Southampton for their operation.  Those being admitted as an emergency will be taken 

directly to Southampton by ambulance, rather than to Portsmouth.  Most patients will be discharged 

directly home once medically fit following surgery, which means that it should not be necessary for 

patients to be repatriated to Portsmouth.  All outpatient appointments will remain in the hospital 

nearest to their own home.  

This proposal will affect the population of Southern Hampshire.  The map below shows the area 

covered by Southern Hampshire.   

Page 30



17 
 

 

This proposal will change access to services for patients from across Southern Hampshire as they will 

be taken to Southampton in an emergency situation and over time, will need to travel to 

Southampton for complex elective surgery. 

The impact on service users has been assessed in terms of: 

 Waiting Times –waiting times are defined by the NHS Constitution and when the agreed 

proposal is implemented, providers will be monitored against these definitions through the 

NHS Standard Contractual Arrangements.     

 Transport (public and private) – Phase 1 of the proposal is in relation to emergency 

situations and therefore transportation would be via ambulance.  Phase 2 will mean that a 

small number of patients, family/carers may be required to travel a slightly longer distance, 

as a result of these changes.  However, the service they are travelling for will be an improved 

service. 

 Travel Time – Isochrone data provided by South Central Ambulance Service has identified 

that all hospitals are within the 60 minute travel distance for safe transfer of vascular 

patients across Southern Hampshire in an emergency.  Some patients have to travel further 

for their surgery but the Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland states that the longer 

travel time will be more than outweighed by the better outcomes for all local patients.  In an 

emergency situation, such as in the case of a ruptured AAA, the maximum expected travel 

time under blue light conditions is 40 minutes. 

Page 31



18 
 

 

This map above shows 20, 30, 40 and 60 minute Isochrones (Ambulance travel times under blue light 

conditions). 

In 2009 the NHS AAA screening programme for men aged 65 was introduced with full 

implementation in 2013.  The aim of this programme is to identifying apparently healthy people who 

may have an AAA.   This programme will therefore mean an increased number of patients requiring 

vascular surgery for AAA.  This surgery will however be undertaken as a planned procedure rather 

than undertaken in an emergency situation. 

The impact on staff has been assessed.  The affected staff includes a small number of doctors, nurses 

and therapists at Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust and University Southampton Hospital NHS 

Foundation Trust.  The change will involve closer multi-disciplinary working across the two 

organisations and some potential additional travel for doctors in line with the proposed joint rota. 

  

Page 32



19 
 

11 COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE ACROSS LOCAL PROVIDERS 

Volume of Elective AAA repairs and in-hospital mortality by Trust, Jan 2008 to Dec 2012 

 Trust Number of 
AAA 
performed 

Number of 
Open 
procedures 

Number of 
EVAR 
procedures 

In-hospital 
Mortality 
(unadjusted) 

PHT Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 216 105 111 4.20% 

UHS University Hospital Southampton 
NHS Foundation Trust 

377 201 176 0.80% 

BHT Buckinghamshire Healthcare 
NHS Trust 

166 90 76 1.80% 

HWPT Heatherwood and Wexham Park 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

72 18 54 1.40% 

OUH Oxford University Hospitals NHS 
Trust 

271 125 146 1.10% 

BST Brighton and Sussex University 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

250 75 175 1.20% 

FPH Frimley Park Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

309 125 184 1.00% 

WSH Western Sussex Hospitals NHS 
Trust 

130 130 0 1.50% 

DCH Dorset County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

73 73 0 6.90% 

RBCH Royal Bournemouth and 
Christchurch Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 

333 109 224 1.80% 

SFT Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 82 68 14 1.20% 

 Data Source: National Vascular Registry - 2013 Report on Surgical Outcomes, 
Consultant Level Statistics 

 

 

Volume and outcomes of carotid endarterectomies, October 2009 to September 2012 

 Trust Number of 
CEAs 
performed 

Number 
of CEAs 
with 
outcome 
data 

% stroke 
and/or 
death within 
30 days 
(unadjusted) 

Median 
(IQR) delay 
between 
sympton and 
surgery 

PHT Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 215 215 1.90% 22(12,65) 

UHS University Hospital Southampton 
NHS Foundation Trust 

299 299 1.70% 16(11,26) 

BHT Buckinghamshire Healthcare 
NHS Trust 

244 239 2.10% 11(8,16) 

OUH Oxford University Hospitals NHS 
Trust 

244 234 3.00% 19(8,41) 

BST Brighton and Sussex University 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

120 120 1.70% 9(7,14) 

FPH Frimley Park Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

200 199 2.50% 9(5,20) 

WSH Western Sussex Hospitals NHS 
Trust 

83 81 3.70% 16(12,24) 

Page 33



20 
 

Volume and outcomes of carotid endarterectomies, October 2009 to September 2012 

 Trust Number of 
CEAs 
performed 

Number 
of CEAs 
with 
outcome 
data 

% stroke 
and/or 
death within 
30 days 
(unadjusted) 

Median 
(IQR) delay 
between 
sympton and 
surgery 

DCH Dorset County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

88 88 5.70% 10(5,29) 

RBCH Royal Bournemouth and 
Christchurch Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 

160 111 9.00% 18(8,40) 

SFT Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 71 71 0.00% 10(5,33) 

Data Source: National Vascular Registry - 2013 Report on Surgical Outcomes, 
Consultant Level Statistics 

 

Please note that the outcome information was derived from three years of data, on patients who 
underwent surgery between 1 October 2009 and 30 September 2012. The median delay was based on 
one year of data, and relates to patients treated between 1 October 2011 and 30 September 2012. 

 

 

 

  

Page 34



21 
 

Appendix A.  Evidence base 

The evidence base concerning the relationship between patient outcome and the organisation of 

vascular services has become more extensive over the past few years. There is a strong evidence 

base that suggests that mortality from elective aneurysm surgery is significantly less in centres with 

a high caseload than in units that perform a lower number of procedures.  A meta-analysis of the 

existing literature (Holt, Poloniecki et al. 2007) reviewed studies containing 421,299 elective 

aneurysm repairs and reported a weighted odds ratio of 0.66 in favour of higher volume centres 

dichotomised at 43 cases per year. However, although robust, meta-analyses can be criticised due to 

publication bias, heterogeneity and the predominance of data from certain countries, additional 

information may be gathered by analysing national administrative data.  HES data for elective 

aneurysm repair in the UK between 2000-2005 (Holt, Poloniecki et al. 2007) demonstrated that the 

mean mortality for an elective repair was 7.4%, and that 80% of all aneurysm repairs were carried 

out in units performing less than 33 cases annually.  

Importantly, the mortality rate in the units with lowest caseload was 8.5% as compared to the 5.9% 

reported by units with a higher workload. Even more worrying were the many small volume centres 

where the elective mortality may often exceed 20%.  A similar pattern was seen in a recent report 

from the Vascular Society – Outcomes after Elective Repair of Infra-Renal AAA 2012, and it remains 

noticeable that some low volume units have mortality rates vastly in excess of the national average 

Recent data have demonstrated that the early mortality difference observed between low and high 

volume units is maintained in the long term (Holt, Karthikesalingam et al. 2012).  

 With regard to ruptured AAA, the absolute mortality differences between hospitals in the lowest 

and highest volume quintiles reached 24% (Holt, Karthikesalingam et al.). Data on operative 

mortality in isolation, only tells part of the story, as case mix and patients considered “unfit” for 

surgery must also be considered.  In these areas there is evidence to suggest disparate practices, 

with no surgical intervention being offered to over 50% of emergency patients with ruptured AAA in 

low volume units as compared to approximately 20% in the highest volume centres (Holt, 

Karthikesalingam et al.).    

Two recent studies have investigated the effect of endovascular repair on the volume-outcome 

relationship for elective aneurysm surgery. The studies demonstrated that:  

• Hospital volume was significantly related to elective aneurysm mortality for open repair, 

endovascular repair and the combined (open + endovascular) group (Holt, Poloniecki et al. 2009). 

There was a significant difference between endovascular mortality between the lowest and highest 

quintile providers (6.88 vs. 2.88%), and a 77% reduction in mortality was observed for every 100 

endovascular repairs performed.  Higher volume hospitals were more likely to adopt endovascular 

therapy (44% in high volume hospitals vs. 18% in low volume hospitals) (Dimick and Upchurch 2008).  

• Hospital volume was an independent predictor of mortality.  

• Results were defined by the total aneurysm caseload rather than either endovascular or open 

cohorts alone i.e. hospitals with a large, predominantly endovascular, caseload also reported better 

than average results from open aneurysm repair.  

 The use of endovascular and minimally invasive techniques is a rapidly developing area within 

Page 35



22 
 

vascular services and there is likely to be a further shift towards endovascular repair of aneurysm 

over coming years.   

The evidence for volume-outcome relationships has been described for abdominal aortic aneurysms. 

However, there is evidence that similar relationships affect the performance of other vascular 

procedures including lower limb arterial reconstruction and carotid endarterectomy 

(Karthikesalingam et al 2010;Moxey et al 2012)  

 

References 

Dimick, J. B. and G. R. Upchurch, Jr. (2008). "Endovascular technology, hospital volume, and 

mortality with abdominal aortic aneurysm surgery." J Vasc Surg 47(6): 1150-1154.  

• Holt, P. J., P. Gogalniceanu, et al. "Screened individuals' preferences in the delivery of abdominal 

aortic aneurysm repair." Br J Surg 97(4): 504-510.  

• Holt, P. J., A. Karthikesalingam, et al. (2012). "Provider volume and long-term outcome after 

elective abdominal aortic aneurysm repair." Br J Surg 99(5): 666-672.  

• Holt, P. J., A. Karthikesalingam, et al. "Propensity scored analysis of outcomes after ruptured 

abdominal aortic aneurysm." Br J Surg 97(4): 496-503.  

• Holt, P. J., J. D. Poloniecki, et al. (2007). "Meta-analysis and systematic review of the relationship 

between volume and outcome in abdominal aortic aneurysm surgery." Br J Surg 94(4): 395-403.  

• Holt, P. J., J. D. Poloniecki, et al. (2009). "Effect of endovascular aneurysm repair on the volume-

outcome relationship in aneurysm repair." Circ Cardiovasc Qual Outcomes 2(6): 624-632.  

• Holt, P. J., J. D. Poloniecki, et al. (2007). "Epidemiological study of the relationship between volume 

and outcome after abdominal aortic aneurysm surgery in the UK from 2000 to 2005." Br J Surg 94(4): 

441-448.  

• Karthikesalingam A, Hinchliffe RJ, Loftus IM, Thompson MM, Holt PJ. Volume-outcome 

relationships in vascular surgery: the current status. J Endovasc Ther. 2010 Jun;17(3):356-65.  

• Moxey PW, Hofman D, Hinchliffe RJ, Poloniecki J, Loftus IM, Thompson MM, Holt PJ. Volume-

outcome relationships in lower extremity arterial bypass surgery. Ann Surg. 2012 Dec;256(6):1102-7 

 

Page 36



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

 Mr Graham Sutton 

– Consultant Surgeon 

 

P
age 37



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Page 2 3/20/2014 

Compliance with Specification 

Number of cases and outcomes 

 
  

 Aortic Surgery >60 cases per annum 

– >85% elective cases EVAR 

– 1 death in last 155 elective cases 

– No elective deaths in last 2+ years 

 

 Carotid Surgery >80 cases per annum 

– >90% Local Anaesthetic 

– 1 death in last 216 cases 

– No elective deaths in last 1+ years 

 

 

P
age 38



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Individual Surgeon outcomes AAA 

P
age 39



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Individual Surgeon outcomes AAA 

P
age 40



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Individual Surgeon Outcomes CEA 

P
age 41



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Individual Surgeon Outcomes CEA 

P
age 42



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Page 7 3/20/2014 

 

Coronary disease 

 

Stroke 

 

Diabetes 

 

Renal and Transplantation surgery 

 

Vascular service 

 

Interventional Radiology 

 Integrated Cardiovascular disease management programme 

P
age 43



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Page 8 3/20/2014 

Interventional radiology 

 More than 800 cases per annum 

- Supports all elective and emergency pathways in PHT 
 

 Essential for Urology, Trauma, Gastroenterology, Gynaecology and 
Maternity 

 

 Critical for Renal Service 

 

 Critical for Vascular Service 

- Approx 60% of procedures for/ with the above 2 services 

 

 All of Interventional radiology non-viable without Vascular service 

P
age 44



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Key Service Outcomes 1 

Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm 

Metric Agency Definition Target Acceptable PHT 

Mortality NVD/NVR Unit overall elective AAA in 

hospital mortality (by end 

2013) 

≤3.5% <6% <1% 

Length of Stay NVD/NVR LOS for elective AAA repair <7d <10d <4d 

Number of AAA 

repairs per arterial 

centre 

NVD/NVR Number of AAA repairs (total – 

elective and emergency) 

>60 >50 62 so far  in 

2013/14 

 

Mortality: elective 

repair 

NVD/NVR All cause mortality at 1 year 

(collect from ONS) 

≤15% ≤20% 2% 

Time to treatment NAAASP % of subjects with AAA 

≥5.5cm 

deemed fit for intervention 

operated on by vascular 

specialist within eight  

weeks 

≥80% ≥60% 

P
age 45



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Carotid Intervention 

Metric Agency Definition Target Acceptable PHT 

Stroke rate NVD/NVR* Stroke rate 30 days after 

surgery 

<2% <3% <2% 

In last 200 cases 

Mortality NVD/NVR Death rate 30 days after 

surgery 

<1% <2% <1% 

In last 200 cases 

Referral National Stroke Strategy Delay from symptom to 

treatment for suitable 

patients (by 2013) 

<7 days <14 days <14 days  

71% 

2013/14 

Key Service Outcomes 2 

Peripheral Arterial Disease – Lower Limb Bypass (PAD) 

Metric Agency Definition Target Acceptable PHT 

Mortality NVD/NVR Death 30 days after 

surgery 

<5% <10% 2% 

In last 100 cases 

Amputation free survival NVD/NVR Amputation free 

survival 1 year 

post surgery 

Needs bench- 

marking in 

NVR 

P
age 46



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Page 11 3/20/2014 

Summary 

 

  PHT meets the vascular service specification 

 

 PHT exceeds the volume of cases needed to be a vascular centre 

 

 PHT has excellent clinical outcomes for vascular procedures and it 

would not benefit the patients of Portsmouth to move the service 

 

 PHT has specialist services that depend on a local vascular service. 

Moving the service would be harmful to the non vascular patients of 

Portsmouth 

 

 PHT has the workforce and hospital facilities to be a vascular centre 

 

 

P
age 47



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Sustainability 

 PHT under threat of takeover for over 4 years 

 

 Full service and excellent outcomes maintained 

 

 Robust and Sustainable 

 

Page 12 3/20/2014 

P
age 48



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

 Continue the present network arrangements for screen detected 
aneurysms 

 

 Shared MDT for complex cases 

 Shared training in vascular surgery (replicating IR model) 

 Shared research 

 

 Two way movement of complex cases 

– Complex EVAR to UHS 

– Renal compromise cases to PHT 

 

 Create the environment where a regional emergency endovascular 
service could be developed 

 

Page 13 3/20/2014 

Network Model 

P
age 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Proposal to Close the Lowry Unit
	5 Options for the provision of Vascular Surgery for Southern Hampshire
	PHT presentation


